
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

                                                                                  6:30 P.M.     

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council Meeting Minutes / November 5, 2012 / Organizational Meeting   

                                                   Council Meeting Minutes / November 5, 2012 / Business Meeting 

                                                   Council Work Session Minutes / November 13, 2012 

                                

 

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE -  Tommie Conaway 

          Review minutes / November 13
th

  

          1.)   Ordinances: 
                  a.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Profit Drive Extension / Ordinance 2012-66 

                  b.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Garbage Truck Replacement / Ordinance 2012-67 

                  c.)  Lodging Tax Appropriation: Williams Property Acquisition / Ordinance 2012-68 

 

          2.)   Resolutions: 

                a.)   Bid Award:  Profit Drive Extension / John G. Walton Construction Co. / Resolution 2012-93 

     b.)  Bid Award:  Library Carpet Replacement /  Richard Sprouse Construction / Resolution 2012-94 

     c.)  Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce Agreement / Resolution 2012-95 

                d.)  Severe Weather Preparedness Tax Holiday for 2013 / Resolution 2012-96 

               e.)  Issuance of Credit Cards: Building Official – Inspections / Resolution 2012-97 

 

          3.)   Financial Reports: 

1. Treasurer’s Report / October 31, 2012 

2. Sales and Use Tax Collections / September 30, 2012 

3. Lodging Tax Collections / September 30, 2012 

4. General Fund Financial Statement 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Dane Haygood    

    C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  –   Pat Rudicell 

          Review minutes / November 14
th

  

 

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -    Randy Fry       

           Review minutes / November 14
th

  

     

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -   Ron Scott         

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments  –   Adrienne Jones   

          Nomination for Supernumerary Position :  Phillip C. Durant    

    

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority –  Tommie Conaway    

          Review minutes / October 29
th

  

          MOTION:  Appoint Dorothy Morrison 

 

     

     1



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                         NOVEMBER 19, 2012                               PAGE   2 

 

 

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Dane Haygood         

    D.  Library Board –  John Lake 

          Review minutes / September 22
nd

  

          MOTION:  Appoint James M. Morris / Term: November 1, 2012 – September 30, 2016 

                              Appoint Nancy Volovecky / Term: November 1, 2012 -  September 30, 2016 

 

  E.  Planning Commission –  Ron Scott 

    F.  Recreation Board  –   Robin LeJeune  

    G.  Utility Board  –  Randy Fry 

           Review minutes / September 26
th

  

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 

A.  Mayor’s Report  
      a.)  Parade Permit / Shadow Barons / Mardi Gras / February 9, 2013 / Rain Date February 10, 2013 

 

B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C.  Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Bid Award:  Profit Drive Extension / John G. Walton  

       Construction Co. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-93 

 

b.)   Bid Award: Library Carpet Replacement / Richard Sprouse  

                            Construction, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-94 

 

c.)   Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce Agreement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-95 

 

d.)   Participation in the State of AL Severe Weather Preparedness 

        Tax Holiday for the Year 2012. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-96 

 

e.)   Authorizing Issuance of Credit Cards: Building Official – 

       Inspections. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-97 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

       2
ND

  READ 

a.)    Appropriation of Funds: 4 Police Vehicle Replacements. . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-60 

 

b.)   Consenting to the Lease of Certain Property by the 

        Utilities Board of the City of Daphne to the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-65 

 
2



 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                         NOVEMBER 19, 2012                               PAGE   3 

 

 

 

         1
ST

 READ 
b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Profit Drive Extension. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-66 

 

c.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Garbage Truck Replacement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-67 

 

d.)   Lodging Tax Appropriation:  Williams Property Acquisition 

        and Remediation for Yancey Branch Sediment Control. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-68 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 
COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN RUDICELL    PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCIMAN LEJEUNE      PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN HAYGOOD  PRESENT       ABSENT         
    
MAYOR 
 
MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
CITY CLERK: 
 
DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 
 
CITY ATTORNEY: 
 
CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    
 
 
MINUTE NOTES: 
 
 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 

4



                                                             
 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 
 
      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 
 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                                                             

5



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

The City Clerk, David Cohen, called meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.  

 

2.   INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Mr. Greg Kennedy Pastor of Christ Presbyterian Church gave the invocation.  

 

3.   OATHS OF OFFICE: 

 

Oath of Office:    Mayor Bailey Yelding, Jr. 
Judge Jody Bishop administered the oath of office for Mayor Yelding with his daughter Erika Ford holding the 

Bible. 

 

 Oath of Office:      Pat Rudicell          District  2 

Judge Jody Bishop administered the oath of office for Pat Rudicell with his sister Daphne Robinson holding 

the Bible. 

 

Oath of Office:       Tommie Conaway    District   1 
 

Judge Lyn Stuart administered the oath of office for Mrs. Conaway with her husband Francis holding the 

Bible. 

 

Oath of Office:       John Lake     District   3 
 

Judge Pam Baschab administered the oath of office for Mr. Lake with Mr. Lake=s brother and sister-in-law 

Charles and Candy Lake holding the Bible. 

 

 Oath of Office: Randy Fry   District   4        

 

Judge Joseph Langford Floyd administered the oath of office for Mr. Fry with his wife Liz holding the Bible. 

 

Oath of Office:       Ron Scott     District   5 
 

Judge Joseph Langford Floyd administered the oath of office for Mr. Scott with his wife Linda holding the 

Bible. 

 

Oath of Office:       Robin LeJeune    District   6 
 

Judge Joseph Langford Floyd administered the oath of office for Mr. LeJeune with his wife Christina holding 

the Bible. 

 

Oath of Office:       Dane Haygood    District   7 
 

Judge James H. Reid administered the oath of office for Mr. Haygood with his wife Robyn holding the Bible. 

 

 

 

 

 

6



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING          

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

6:30 PM  

2 

4.   ROLL CALL 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway, Pat Rudicell, John Lake, Randy Fry, Ron Scott, Robin LeJeune, 

Dane Haygood. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City, 

Attorney; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Vickie Hinman,  Human Resource Director; 

David McKelroy, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, 

Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Suzanne 

Henson, Senior Accountant; Michele Henson, Human Resources; Denise Penry, Public Works Accountant; 

Jane Robbins, Mayor’s Assistant; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department; Dan Castrillo, Fire Inspection; 

Rick Whitehead, IT; Willie Robison, BZA; Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation; Al Guarisco, Village 

Point Foundation; Representative Randy Davis.  

 

5.   ELECT COUNCIL PRESIDENT:  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to nominate Councilman Scott as Council President.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

There being no other nominations council voted on nominee Ron Scott. 

 

 

AYE Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, LeJeune, Haygood                                          ABSTAIN    Scott 

 

                                                    MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Council President Scott called a recess at 6:52 p.m. 

 

Council President Scott reconvened the meeting at 7:22 p.m. 

 

  

6.    ELECT COUNCIL PRESIDENT PRO TEM 
 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Fry to elect Councilman Haygood as Council President Pro tem.       Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune.  

 

AYE   Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune                         ABSTAIN    Haygood  

 

                                                                MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 7



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

6:30 PM  

3 

 
7.    ESTABLISH TIME AND PLACE OF REGULAR MEETINGS HELD EACH MONTH. 

       (1
ST

 & 3
RD

 Monday at 6:30 P.M. (as contained in Council Rules of Procedure) 

 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Lake to establish the 1

st
 & 3

rd
 Mondays of each month for the Council 

meeting beginning at 6:30 P.M as contained in the Council Rules of Procedure ordinance.     Seconded 

by Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

8.    COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE/ Ordinance 2012-63 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2012-63.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye     Haygood  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye      

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-63.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR               NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2012-63.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

6:30 PM  

4 

 

9.    RETAINING OFFICERS  

              

a.) RETAINING CITY CLERK  / DAVID COHEN / RESOLUTION 2012-84  

 

MOTIONBY Councilman Haygood to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-84.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

          

RESOLUTION FAILED FOR LACK OF A MOTION TO ADOPT 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to terminate David Cohen as City Clerk as of the end of the business 

day today, November 5, 2012 with last day of compensation December 31, 2012. 

 

After discussion Councilman Lake withdrew his motion. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to terminate David Cohen as City Clerk with appropriate 

compensation according to the Employee Handbook effective today.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to appoint Rebecca Hayes as Interim City Clerk effective immediately.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

    b.)   RETAINING TREASURER  / KIM BRILEY /  RESOLUTION 2012-85 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-85.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2012-85.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

9



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

6:30 PM  

5 

 

c.) RETAINING FIRE CHIEF  / JAMES “BO” WHITE / RESOLUTION 2012-86  

RETAINING POLICE CHIEF / DAVID CARPENETER / RESOLUTION 2012-87 

RETAINING CITY ATTORNEY / JAY ROSS / RESOLUTION 2012-88 

RETAINING EMPLOYEES UNDER MERIT SYSTEM / RESOLUTION 2012-89 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-86, 2012-87, 2012-88, 

 2012-89, 2012-90 and 2012-91.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

     

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2012-86, 2012-87, 2012-88 and 2012-89.  Seconded 

by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED              MOTION CARRIED 
      

 

d.)  RETAIN CITY JUDGE / KEN HITSON / RESOLUTION 2012-90 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2012-90.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Nay     LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Nay     Haygood  Nay  

Lake   Aye     Scott   Nay 

Fry   Nay 

 

        AYE    Lake, LeJeune                                        NAY    Conaway, Rudicell, Fry, Haygood, Scott 

 

                                                                MOTION FAILED 

 

Mr. Ross stated that the judge will serve until replaced or as long as he wants to stay during the 

replacement process. 

 

e.) RETAIN CITY PROSECUTOR / JAMES SCROGGINS / RESOLUTION 2012-91 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Haygood to adopt Resolution 2012-91.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 
10



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

6:30 PM  

6 

 

      f.)  ASSIGNMENT OF COMMITTEES / RESOLUTION 2012-92 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-92.  Seconded by Councilman 

Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION  By Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2012-92.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

10.    RATIFY USE OF PRESENT BANK DEPOSITORIES AND SIGNATIORIES TO THE  

         CITY ACCOUNTS / ORDINANCE 2012-64 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Haygood to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2012-64.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye     Haygood  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-64.   Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTIONBY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2012-64.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood.   

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

11



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

6:30 PM  

7 

 

 

11.  ADJOURN 

 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.                     Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway  

  

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

. 
 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT  

7:40 PM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 

_______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Ron Scott, 

Council President 

    

12



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

7:40 P.M. 

1 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 7:40 p.m. 

  

2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Roll call and invocation given at the Organizational meeting. 

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Dane Haygood. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Yelding;  Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Adrienne 

Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Richard Johnson, 

Public Works Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Vickie Hinman,  Human Resource Director; 

David McKelroy, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, 

Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; 

Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Jane Robbins, Mayor’s Assistant; Captain Scott Taylor, Police 

Department; Dan Castrillo, Fire Inspection; Rick Whitehead, IT; Willie Robison, BZA; Selena Vaughn, 

Village Point Foundation; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation.  

 

3. APPROVE MINUTES: 

 

There were no corrections to the October 15, 2012 council meeting minutes and October 16, 2012 Special 

Called council meeting.  Minutes are adopted as presented. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   America Recycles Day / November 15, 2012 

 

Mayor Yelding read and presented the proclamation to the Public Works Director Richard Johnson. 

 

MOTION:  Change November 12, 2012 Work Session Date (Veterans Day) 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to change the November 12, 2012 Work Session to Tuesday, 

November 13, 2012.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

4.  REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott  

No report.  The next meeting will be Tuesday, November 13
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

     B.  Buildings and Property Committee – Lake 

The next meeting will be November 19
th

 5:30 p.m. in the Executive Conference room. 

 

C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –  
The minutes for the October 10

th
 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be November 14

th
.  

 

   D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  13



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

7:40 P.M. 

2 

No report.  The next meeting will be November 19
th

. 

 

E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY –  
No report.  The next meeting will be the 3

rd
 Monday of November. 

 

 

 

                                                                                 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones 

Mrs. Jones congratulated the new council, and reported that there will not be a meeting in November. 

They still need two (2) supernumerary members. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – 

Mrs. Hayes reported that the members met October 29
th

, and they awarded several mini-grants for 

improvements to the businesses in the Olde Towne area.  Their goal is to attract businesses to this area.    The 

chairman will make a presentation to council in January.  The next meeting will be November 26
th

 at 5:30 

p.m. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board –  

The next meeting will be November 13
th

, and no meeting on November 26
th

.  

   

D. Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be Thursday.. 

 

E. Planning Commission –  
Mrs. Jones reported the Site Review meeting will be next Wednesday at 10:00 a.m., and the Planning 

Commission meeting will be November 16
th

 at 5:30 p.m.  The minutes for the September 27
th

 meeting are in 

the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Haygood to set a Public Hearing for December 3, 2012 to consider Rezoning 

and Annexation of:  

 

Rezoning & Annexation: GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee    

Location:  Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and County Road 13 

Present Zoning: RSF-2 Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15    

Requested Zoning: R-3 High Density Single Family Residential District    

Recommendation: No Recommendation / Motion to set forth an unfavorable recommendation failed.         

                                Six members were present three voted in the affirmative and three dissented.   

 

Seconded by Councilman Lake.   

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

Council President Scott requested this request to be on the work session agenda for November 13
th

.  He asked 

Mrs. Jones to have maps, and explain the process 14



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

7:40 P.M. 

3 

 

     F.   Recreation Board -  

No report. 

 

G. Utility Board – 
Mr. Rob McElroy, Daphne Utility Director, presented Council President Scott with a plaque thanking him for 

his service on the board since 2004. 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

A.  Mayor’s Report 

       a.) Parade Permit / American Foundation of Suicide Prevention “Out of Darkness” / 5K & 1 Mile Fun   

            Walk / October 20, 2013 

       b.) Parade Permit / Mystic Order of Persephone / Mardi Gras / February 8, 2013 / Rain Date February  

            10, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permits for American Foundation of Suicide 

Prevention “Out of Darkness” / 5K & 1 Mile Fun Walk / October 20, 2013 and  Mystic Order of 

Persephone / Mardi Gras / February 8, 2013 / Rain Date February 10, 2013.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

       c.)   ABC License / Uncorked Fine Wines II / 040 – Retail Beer (On Or Off Premises) / 060 – Retail   

              Table Wine (On or Off Premises) 

 

MOTION  BY Councilman Haygood to approve the ABC License for ABC License / Uncorked Fine 

Wines II / 040 – Retail Beer (On Or Off Premises) / 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises).  

Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

d.) ABC License / The Fresh Market / 050 – Retail Beer (Off Premises Only)  / 070 – Retail Table  

Wine (Off Premises Only) 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Haygood to approve the ABC License for The Fresh Market / 050 – 

Retail Beer (Off Premises Only)  / 070 – Retail Table Wine (Off Premises Only).  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 15



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

7:40 P.M. 

4 

 

e.) National League of Cities Voting Delegate / Boston, Massachusetts / December 1, 2012 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to appoint Councilman Lake as voting delegate to the 

National League of Cities Conference on December 1, 2012.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Mrs. Jane Ellis, Assistant to Mayor Yelding, announced that there will be a Veteran’s Day program at 

10:00 a.m. at Patriots Point at the Civic Center.  There will be a reception Thursday at 1:30 p.m. by 

BRAG in the lobby where they will showcase a fiber optic art project quilt that will hang in the City 

Hall atrium. 

 

B. City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross thanked council for allowing him to continue as the city attorney, and congratulated the new 

council members.  He stated that he needs to update council on a lot of legal matters at a future council 

meeting. 

 

C. Department Head Comments 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director – reported that the contractor for the Main Street resurfacing 

has had some key pieces of equipment to break down, and he has had to order parts from Germany, and 

now they are back on track with the paving.  He said they had cut the timing loop for the traffic light at 

Belrose Avenue and Main street, but it is set to be fixed tomorrow.  He apologized for any 

inconvenience citizens have experienced. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported on events going on at the Sports Complex, and that 

Daphne High School will be playing Blount County in the playoffs Friday.  He also reported that Coach 

Vic did not have cancer.  He said that there will be a Caregivers seminar at the Recreation Center on 

November 14
th

.   The Recreation Board will be meeting Thursday, November 14
th

 at 6:30 p.m.  The 

Christmas parade is November 30
th

, and he invited the Mayor and council to participate. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that they solved a homicide within a day, and the last 

homicide is going to trial this week. 

 

Richard Merchant – Building Official – reported that this has been the best month of residential starts 

for a long time with 38 starts, and that The Fresh Market is planning to open by Thanksgiving. 

 

Kim Briley – Finance Director/Treasurer – thanked council for the reappointment and looks forward to 

working with them. 

 

James White – Fire Chief – thanked council for the vote of confidence, and he will strive to provide the 

best service possible. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director -  reported that voting will be from 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. at 

the Civic Center tomorrow. 16



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

7:40 P.M. 

5 

 
Adrienne Jones – Planning Director - said that all the council was invited to the grand opening of the Fresh 

Market on the 14
th
 beginning at 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

7.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Willie Robison – spoke regarding naming the Senior Citizens Center the E. Harry Brown Senior Center. 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: Police Vehicle Replacement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-60 

 

b.) Regulating the Use of Alcoholic Beverages in Public Places  

        in the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-61 

 

c.) Regulating Personal Use of Social Media by Employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinances 2012-62 

 

MOTION  BY Councilman Lake to postpone Ordinance 2012-60 until after it has been discussed at the 

Public Safety meeting.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-61 and 2012-62.  Seconded by 

Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2012-61.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2012-62.  Seconded by Councilman 

Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 
17



NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

7:40 P.M. 

6 

 

   9.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Yelding commended the new council, and said they are a part of his well-oiled machine.  He said he has the best 

Department Heads in the Western Hemisphere.  They are good people with whom to work. 

  

Councilwoman Conaway is looking forward to working with the new council and thanked Mrs. Hayes for the swearing 

in and reception arrangements. 

 

Councilman Rudicell is looking forward to the next four (4) years. 

 

Councilman Lake still wants local vendors to bid first on any vehicles purchased by the city. He Cautioned the 

new council members to pace themselves so as not to wear themselves down.  He urged everyone to vote 

tomorrow. 

 

Councilman Fry appreciates the opportunity to serve as a councilman, and thanked the people for helping him get 

here.  He is looking forward to serving the citizens.  He gave a shout out to the Beautification Committee for all 

their great ideas for beautifying the city. 

 

Councilman LeJeune is looking forward to working with everybody, and serving the citizens of Daphne. 

 

Council President Scott thanked council for showing confidence in him by electing him Council President.  He is 

looking forward to serving with the new council and Mayor.  He looks forward to future projects, there has been a 

lot accomplished in the last eight (8) years.  He is committed to keeping the city financially strong. 

 

 
10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT     

 8:30  P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                                        

 

____________________________                              

Rebecca A. Hayes,       

Interim City Clerk                                

    Certification of Presiding Officer:       
 

    ___________________________________ 

    Ron Scott, 

    Council President 

 

 

18



NOVEMBER 13, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin 

LeJeune; Dane Haygood. 

 

ABSENT:  Tommie Conaway. 

 

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public 

Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Rick 

Whitehead IT; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Rob McElroy, Utility Director; Melinda Immell, Volkert 

& Associates. 

  

Absent:  Mayor Yelding. 

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

 

1. COMMUNICATION TOWER: 

Mr. Jay Ross, City Attorney, gave a synopsis of why the city should consider the services of CMS 

and hiring an engineer to examine the existing tower to make sure it is structurally sound and what 

the specs should be for the new tower. 

 

Mrs. Mignon Bauer with the Center for Municipal Solutions gave a presentation of what her 

company could do for the city regarding the installation of a new tower. She said basically, they 

would oversee and regulate the installation of the tower, and they would be paid by the applicant, not 

by the city. 

 

Mr. Ross said the next step would be to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with an 

engineer. 

 

Council President Scott requested Mrs. Henson and Mr. Ross to seek proposals for an engineer and 

to make a recommendation to council. 

 

Mrs. Bauer said that she would have their engineer to submit a proposal. 

 

2. UTILITY LEASE / ORDINANCE 2012-65 

Mr. McElroy explained that they are working with Algae Systems, LLC who has discovered a way 

to make clean water and jet fuel from algae.  They have done this in the lab and now they need to see 

if it works outside.  The project will be between two (2) to three (3) years with a cost of $3 – 5 

million in proposed equipment and upgrades to the property. This will create five (5) to eight (8) 

jobs with salaries averaging $50,000, and they will buy local when they can. They will piggyback 

their ADEM permits.   

 

Mr. Ross said according to state law the utilities has to have council approval to lease the property. 

 

Council President Scott requested Ordinance 2012-65 be on the agenda for Monday’s council 

meeting. 

19



NOVEMBER 13, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

3. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, said that this concept has been around for about seven (7) 

years. The owners approached the city with first right to purchase.  It is an abandoned dirt pit.  The 

asking price is $149,000 plus $51,000 for engineering cost for remediation.  The Village Point 

Foundation recommends this project.  This property contributes to sediment buildup at the mouth of 

the bay and the city’s bayfront property so they are requesting to use Lodging Tax funds to purchase 

the property under the maintenance of bayfront property clause of the Lodging Tax ordinance.  Mrs. 

Briley concurred with the use of Lodging Tax funds to purchase the property.  Mr. Johnson used 

some of his funds to pay for an appraisal of the property.   

 

Council asked Mr. Ross to make sure Lodging Tax funds could be used to purchase the property. 

 

4.  REZONE AND ANNEXATION: RETREAT AT TIAWASEE 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Planning Director, gave a power point presentation on the rezoning and 

presented instructional slides to help new council members with the criteria for approving or 

rejecting the zoning request. 

 

5.    WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

Council discussed the hiring process for the position of City Judge.  Each council member will make 

a nomination, and then set up a time for interviews. 

 

Mr. Ross said that Judge Hitson has agreed to stay until a new judge is hired. 

 

Council President Scott said that they will take this up along with the hiring of a City Clerk after the 

first of the year.   

 

6.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

Interim City Clerk                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President     

20



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

21



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 13, 2012 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:01 p.m.  Present were Chairwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilman Ron 
Scott, Councilman Dane Haygood, Mayor Bailey Yelding, Jr., Finance Director Kim Briley, Deputy Director 
Christine Ciancetta, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
 
Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director arrived at 4:11 p.m. and Mr. John Lake, Councilman at 4:16 p.m.. 
  
 
Also in attendance were Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, 
Library Director Tonya Young, Revenue Director Heather Gywnn and Fire Chief James White. 
. 

 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
A.Mr. Kevin Spriggs discussed the appropriation request on the agenda for Blue Print for Tomorrow and noted 
he was against it.  Mr. Spriggs also noted concerns about small businesses and discussed a Business License 
Reform.  Mr. Scott noted that the City has a balanced budget and any revisions to the Business License fee 
would require another revenue source to replace it.  It was discussed that any revisions should originate in the 
Finance Committee. 
  
B.  Mrs. Tomasina Werner inquired about the City resuming the mail out of the Jubilee Breeze magazine to the 
citizens.  The City stopped mailing out the Jubilee Breeze due to the cost after the downturn in the economy. 
Mrs. Briley noted Mrs. Ellis in the Mayor’s office oversees the Jubilee Breeze publication and that she would 
follow up with her on the cost to mail it again and bring that information back before the Finance Committee.   

      

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report. 
 
Positions   Status 
Communications Officer  Interviews Nov 16, 2012 
Public Service Worker (Street)   Date of Hire:  Oct. 25, 2012  
Admin Tech (Mechanical)         Interviewing 
Firefighter (Internal Posting)     Reviewing Applications 
 
Safety Committee Meeting Discussions included: 
A City Hall building inspection was done and only minor issues found (outlet covers were broken).  A work order 
has been placed with Public Works for the repairs.  The next inspection will be the Ruff Wilson/Boys and Girls 
Club. In October, City Hall has a new procedure for all visitors to sign in at the front desk.  The Public Works  
Confined Spaces training was completed by Freddie Johnson and Terry White; Tree Climbing certifications was 
completed by Chris Stanton and Roy Bindon.  It was also discussed Solid Waste employees need hard hats for 
use at the landfill. 
 
Human Resource projects include: 
Conference calls with Kronos regarding new server and upgrades 
Reviewing Personnel Handbook (revisions needed) 
Red Cross Blood Drive, October 31, 2012 
Mobile Human Resources Conference, November 9, 2012 
 
 

22



Finance Minutes - 2012-11-14.doc  2  

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  October 31, 2012 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $18,412,777.21 was presented by Ms. Briley. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of October 31, 2012, in the 
amount of $18,412,777.21.  Seconded by Mr. Haygood.  Motion carried. 
 
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: September 31 , 2012 
The Sales and Use Tax reports were presented by Ms. Briley and discussion was made that there was a 
change in the detail format showing a breakout for Eastern Shore Park collections.  Ms. Briley noted that due to 
the refunding of the 2006 Special Tax Warrants the collections that were previously pledged for Debt Service 
will now be included in the General Fund.  These numbers will be reported in a separate column for comparative 
purposes.  Discussion was made that the $3 million from the 2012 Bond issue  that was designated for road 
projects has been moved to an investment account until draws are required for payments.  Ms. Briley also noted 
that $2.3 million is already obligated out of this $3 million for approved future road projects. 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for September 2012    -   $1,004,661 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for September 2012    -   $  899,386           
Over Budget (for September)                                      -   $  105,275  
 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $577,928 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections, September 30, 2012  
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $49,968.89 collected for September 2012. Mrs. Briley noted Lodging 
Tax collections were down from what was budgeted but only slightly.  This is in line with prior years.  
Discussions continued on the breakdown on the allocation of revenues.   

 
4.  Report: New Business Licenses – October 2012 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in October was included in the packet.  
 

5.  Bills Paid Reports – October 2012 
The Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2. 
Ms. Henson noted that there were two packets due to the continuing closeout of FY2012 and ongoing 
operations for FY2013. 
 

B.  Bids 
 
1.  2012-A-Profit Drive Extension  
Mr. Johnson reviewed the Profit Drive Extension project and noted the recommendation is for the low bidder, 
John G. Walton Construction Co. in the amount of $240,344.34 (total project cost - $271,844.34 including 
engineering/testing).  Discussion continued that $106,445 was previously appropriated for this project and that 
an additional $165,400 was needed. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding the following 
bid:  2013-A-Profit Drive Extension to John G. Walton Construction Company in the 
amount of $240,344.34. Seconded by Mr. Haygood.  Motion carried. 
  

2.  2013-B-Library Carpet Replacement: 
Ms. Young discussed the project and noted that Council had already approved $125,000 to replace the carpet in 
the Library.  Ms. Young noted that Mr. Barnett, Building Maintenance Supervisor, had also reviewed the bid 
submittals.  Ms. Young noted she had completed checking references and the recommendation was to award to 
the low bidder Richard Sprouse Construction in the amount of $58,212. 

23



Finance Minutes - 2012-11-14.doc  3  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding the following 
bid: 2013-B-Library Carpet Replacement to Richard Sprouse Construction in the 
amount of $58,212.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
C.  Approve Annual Community Contributions: 
 
1. Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce - $6000 
Ms. Briley stated discussed that $6,000 is appropriated in the FY2013 Budget but that a Resolution is needed to 
authorize the Mayor to enter into the annual agreement with Chamber of Commerce so the funds can be 
disbursed.  Mr. Scott reviewed what the Chamber provides to the City and noted there have been previous 
discussions of the Council concerning the Chamber.  Mr. Scott stated that he believes the Chamber contributes 
to the City and that the City could NOT absorb these duties.  Mr. Lake commented that the $6,000 annual 
appropriation has remained constant over and they have not asked for an increase in many years. Mr. Lake 
stated that the Chamber is an activist for the City. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend the Council adopt a resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to enter into a contract in the amount of $ 6,000 with the Eastern Shore 
Chamber of Commerce.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
 

D.  Appropriation Request 
 
Garbage Enterprise Fund 
1. Garbage: 28-Yard Automated Side-Loading Refuse Collection Garbage Truck-$234,908.78  

Mr. Johnson reviewed the history on garbage truck repairs and the need to keep the fleet maintained and a 
continual replacement schedule in place to keep operations going.  Mr. Johnson reviewed the current lease 
balance that Ms. Briley prepared and noted the debt for two current trucks under lease will be retired this 
January.  Ms. Briley noted that monies are available in the Enterprise Fund to lease this new truck.  Mr. Johnson 
requested the lease be approved if possible in December due to the current model only being available for a 
short time.  Information was included in the packet on the truck being purchased off the National Joint Powers 
Alliance (NJPA), a national cooperative approved by the State of Alabama in which the City is a member (the 
City can purchase from this organization like it can from the State Bid Contract). 

 

Motion by Mr. Lake to recommend to council to  approve Appropriation Request  to 
purchase a 28-Yard Automated Side Loading Refuse Collection Garbage Truck in the 
amount of $234,909.78 from the Garbage Enterprise Fund. Seconded by Mr. Scott.  
Motion carried. 

 
General Fund 
1.  Blueprint for Tomorrow-$35,000 
Discussion was made that this item needs to go to a Council Work Session. 

 
Four Cent Gas Tax 
1.  Profit Drive Extension-$165,400 – ($106,445 previously appropriated) 
Discussion continued that the total project cost is $271,844.34 (including engineering/testing), $106,445 was 
previously appropriated so an additional $165,400 is needed.  Mrs. Briley stated that this should come from the 
Four Cent Gas Tax Fund so that the remaining 2012 Construction Fund balance will remain intact for the match 
on any grants (such as ATRIP) the City will be required to make (if the grants are approved). 
 

Motion by Mr. Lake to recommend to council to  approve Appropriation Request  in the 
amount of $ 165,400 for the completion of the Profit Drive Extension project.  Funding 
to come from the Four Cent Gas Tax Fund. Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 

24



Finance Minutes - 2012-11-14.doc  4  

 

  
 
        
E.  2013 Severe Weather Preparedness Tax Holiday - February 22-24, 2013 
Discussion was made that this Resolution is similar to the Back to School Tax Holiday. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council to adopt a resolution approving the  2013 
Severe Weather Preparedness Tax Holiday.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

 
F.  Request for Credit Card-Building Official - Inspection  
Mrs. Briley explained approval is required from Council to issue City credit cards.  Ms. Henson explained 
multiple departments, including Building Inspection, may use one department’s credit card which sometimes 
creates a scheduling conflict for the use of the card.  Ms. Henson also noted that several of the Building 
Inspection employees require training to maintain their certifications.   
  

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council to approve a resolution to issue a new City 
credit card to the Building Official - Inspections.  Seconded by Mr. Haygood.  Motion 
carried. 

 
G.  Update:  ADECA:  Recreational Trails Program RTP Grant-Pedestrian Boardwalk 
West side of US98 D’Olive Creek-$80,000. 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the $80,000 ADECA Grant and the timeline of events required by the Grant.  Mr. Johnson 
noted the Pedestrian Boardwalk on the west side of US98 D’Olive Creek will be a great addition to Gator Alley.  
Mr. Johnson discussed he hoped the bids would be ready to present at the next Finance meeting.  The grant will 
be 75% grant funds and 25% City funds. 

 
H.  William’s Property Purchase-$200,000 (Lodging Tax Fund) 
Mr. Johnson stated the abandoned dirt pit is the number one contributor of sediment into Yancey Branch.  Mr. 
Johnson noted that Ms. Campbell has been working on the purchase of this property for several years.  Ms. 
Campbell obtained an appraisal and the property was valued at $150,000.  Mr. Johnson stated that he and Ms. 
Campbell both recommend the City purchase the property.  Mr Scott noted this property is not suitable for a 
subdivision or any other use.  Mr. Johnson noted the property could possibly be converted to a recreational 
property for trails.  Mr. Lake agreed it would be wise to purchase property for preservation purposes.  Mrs. Briley 
noted approximately $900,000 is available in the Lodging Tax Fund.  Mr. Haygood raised concerns about use of 
Lodging Tax funds to purchase the property as Bayfront property. Mr. Johnson noted there is an ecological 
connection of this property to the Bay and noted the Village Point Foundation has reviewed this and supports 
the purchase as well.  (Resolution 2000-22) 
     
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
     
    
 

VI. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:02 p.m. 
 
 
 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, November 14, 2012 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman pat Rudicell 

 

  
I.         CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 

 

Randy Fry, Chairman; Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott;  Robin LeJeune. 

 

Also present were Rebecca Hayes, recording Secretary. 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Mr. Bill Boor spoke in regard to the Animal Control ordinance referring to specifically barking.  

He has a neighbor that has excessive barking dogs and wanted the ordinance to be strengthened to 

deal with the problem.   

 

Discussed:  Amending the ordinance with stiffer fines for repeat offenders.  They will get with 

the city attorney to prepare the ordinance. 

 

III.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 

a.) Amending the Land Use Ordinance 

 

Discussed:  Amending the Land Use ordinance for banners on buildings and sandwich boards for 

businesses, and extending the promotional time limit for banners and balloons to allow for the 

process of amending the ordinance. 

 

b.)  Discussion was held on the newly adopted Alcohol ordinance.  There were some blanks that 

were not filled in at the time of adoption.  

 

 “No special event permit shall be granted for an event lasting longer than _____ 

consecutive calendar days. No more than ______ such special event permits will be 

issued to any one person or organization within a single calendar year.”  And “Processing 

Fee. There shall be paid at the time of filing the application for special event permit a 

processing fee of ____ dollars ($__.00).” 

 

The committee recommended: “No special event permit shall be granted for an event 

lasting longer than three (3) consecutive calendar days. No more than three (3) such 

special event permits will be issued to any one person or organization within a single 

calendar year.”  

 

And “Processing Fee. There shall be paid at the time of filing the application for special 

event permit a processing fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00).” 

 

The committee raised some questions for the city attorney to answer regarding the 

waiving of fees, and how liquor applies with regard to licenses, how applies if it given 

away. 

 

 

76



 
 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

None 

 

V.   ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Pat Rudicell made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 

6:30 p.m. and was seconded by Robin LeJeune. 

 

The next meeting will be December 10
th
 after the Public Safety meeting in the Executive 

Conference room. 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



 

78



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

79



BZA NOMINATION 

Philip C. Durant 

27700 Oakachoy Loop, Daphne, AL  36526 

251-626-8185 – home, 251-680-3502 – cell 

philip@durantweb.net 

Background and Experience 

-Began working in IT related businesses at age 15 

-Began my own IT firm American Computer Enterprises, Inc. at age 17 – October 1997 

-Grew company into well-known local IT company with sales of approximately $1 million annually 

-Gained loyal client base along the Gulf Coast including Alabama, Mississippi, and Florida 

-Managed IT projects for companies typically having 1 to 100 employees and no internal IT staff 

-Managed up to 7 employees working in teams to complete projects on time and on budget 

-Managed all financial aspects of running a small business including basic accounting and money management 

-Prepared and negotiated contracts, agreements, and quotes with vendors and clients 

-Maintained long term relationships with C level executives and other top staff  

-Technical skills include installing, maintaining, and managing Microsoft based networks 

-CompTIA A+,CompTIA  Network +, SonicWall Certifications 

-Annually attended continuous education seminars and conferences 

 

Employment History 

1997 – 2011 – American Computer Enterprises, Inc. 

January 2012 – July 2012 – STC Network Services, Inc. – IT Consultant 

July 2012 – Present – Durant Consulting Group – IT Consultant 

 

Community and Civic Involvement 

-President of Daphne/Spanish Fort Rotary Club 

-Vice President of Supporting Educational Enrichment in Daphne Schools (SEEDS) Board of Directors 

-Member of Fairhope Yacht Club – currently serving on Membership Committee 

-Member of Daphne High School Hall of Fame 

 

Education 

Daphne High School – Graduation May, 1998, with Honors 

University of South Alabama – September, 1998 – May, 2000 – attended 

 

80



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
OCTOBER 29, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLLCALL 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:50 p.m. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito; Ken Balme; Dayna Oldham;  Doug Bailey; Ronald Nero;  

 

ABSENT:  Patricia Vanderpool; Mary Beth Mantiply. 

  

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Cathy Barnette, Council Liaison; 

Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee. 

 

2.   APPROVE MINUTES / SEPTEMBER 6, 2012 

 

MOTION BY Ken Balme to approve the September 6, 2012 minutes.  Seconded by 

Ronald Nero. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR                     NONE APPROVED                     MOTION CARRIED 

 

3.    OLD BUSINESS: 

       a.)    Ad in AL Coasting Magazine: 

Members discussed the pros and cons of spending funds for a year of full page advertising 

in the magazine which is published quarterly.  The magazine has website with smart phone 

guide that is GPS motivated.  They would like more social availability with print and social 

media access.  They discussed discounts for merchants to advertise on another full page ad, 

that would be two full page ads for the quoted price.  Members would like a proposal and 

presentation of apps.  Casey will send out for proposals and report back at the November 

meeting. 

 

       b.)   Grants 

               1.)   Sandbank, LLC / DeCuba / Paving 

 

MOTION BY Ronald Nero to approve the mini-grant for Sandbank, LLC in the 

amount of $828.49 for paving parking lot.  Seconded by Dayna Oldham. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

            2.)   Eddie Youngblood Builders, Inc. / Paving 

 

MOTION BY Dayna Oldham to approve the mini-grant for Eddie Youngblood 

Builders, Inc. in the amount of $2,000 for paving.  Seconded by Ken Balme. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

        

81



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

OCTOBER 29, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

2 

        3.)   Southern Nappa, LLC / Outside Lighting 

 

MOTION BY Ronald Nero to approve the mini-grant for Southern Nappa for outside 

lighting which is contingent on lighting plan in the amount of $1,000.  Seconded by 

Dayna Oldham. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

4.) Elizabeth’s House of Beauty / Paving 

 

MOTION BY Ronald Nero to approve the mini-grant for Elizabeth’s House of Beauty 

to cover the cost of paving contingent on breakdown of cost as provided by DeCuba.  

Seconded by Dayna Oldham. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

5.) Olde Towne Daphne West / Printing of Map of Olde Towne Area 

 

MOTION BY Dayna Oldham to approve the mini-grant for Olde Towne Daphne 

West for printing a map of the Olde  Towne area not to exceed $3,000 contingent on 

Ken Balme reviewing the proof of the map, proof of expenditures, invoices and 

receiving competitive bids, and that the map will be ready and delivered by December 

10, 2012.  Seconded by Ken Balme. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 c.)    Website 

Webpage is ready, she just needs to give them a little information to finish. 

 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS: 

No new business. 

          

5.    TREASURERS REPORT: 

The balance of funds is $89,037.07, and $840 was paid to Al Coasting Magazine.   

 

 6.   REPORT ON BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS / DOROTHY MORRISION 

No report. 

 

 

7.  NEXT MEETING 

82



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

OCTOBER 29, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

3 

The next meeting will be November 26, 2012 at 5:30 p.m. 

Casey will update council on the progress of the Authority in January. 

 

MOTION BY Ronald Nero to recommend to council appointing Dorothy Morrison as 

a member of the Downtown Redevelopment Authority.  Seconded by Dayna Oldham. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority       

                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                             

83



NOMINATION FOR DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

DOROTHY MORRISON -Volunteer 

26197 Via Del San Francesco 

Daphne, Alabama 36526 

251-621-0831 

 

My volunteering began when I was 14…..It was time for the March of Dimes and my Momma 

thought that the neighbors would not be able to turn down a teenagers……..At 15, after the 

terrible Polio Epidemic that occurred in Montgomery, I taught swimming to children with 

polio ………. 

  

When my daughter wanted to be a Girl Scout there was no leader for her troop in Old 

Saybrook, Co.….. I became the leader…hopefully doing as good a job as the women who 

were my leaders when I was a Girl Scout………… 

 

I have been the Treasurer of the Women of the Methodist Church in Wis.  I volunteered 

with the Milwaukee Symphony. I was a Den Mother for my son Cub Scout Troop. I was as a 

Welcome Wagon Hostess greeting new member of the community and securing business of 

the program…… 

 

In Virginia, I was a costumed hostess at the homes of George Washington’s Mother and 

Sister each week and for the fall and spring Home Tour. I was also a guide for walking 

tours of Fredericksburg in the spring and fall. I worked as a travel agent while my children 

were in school…... 

 

In Seattle, I became an active member of the Seattle Symphony Women’s Guild, serving as 

an officer in several positions including Chair of the Decorator Show House and Chair of 

SymphonyEve Ball which are the two major fund raising projects.  I was an officer in the 

Chi Omega Alumnae …….   

 

When my husbands business moved us to Oklahoma City for 4 years, I was the Vice 

President of Ways and Means for the Oklahoma City Symphony Women’s Committee this 

included fund raiser and Show House …. I was also President of the Chi Omega Alumnae  I 

was involved in several committees in Trinity Presbyterian Church…... 

 

84



When we came home to Alabama almost 22 years ago, I was  the Vice President of the 

Mobile Symphony Guild Board. I was an on the Mobile Symphony Board for 11 years serving 

on the committees selecting the first General Manager, and Scott Speck, our Conductor. I 

have been An Advisor to the Board and was awarded The Golden Brush Award. I was a 

member of the Mobile Opera Guild, I Chaired of both the Rose Palmai Tenser Scholarship 

Board, a National Vocal Competition. And The Susan B. Gardberg Award, a Mobile County 

High School Award for Music. I was for several years treasurer of Chi Omega Alumnae 

……… 

 

As an Elder of Government Street Presbyterian Church, I served as Stewardship Chair for 

2009, serve on the Property Committee, work with events at Guesnard House, an 1855 

building GSPC owns, on the Baytreat Retreat Committee, teach 5 and 6 year old Sunday 

School, Bible School, work at Richard Mighell Camp for children in the summer, Co- Chair 

of the First Women’s Retreat in 2008, Usher and Greet.  In 2009 I was asked to fill a 

vacant position as a Deacon. The responsibilities include visiting homebound members 

serving Communion, working on the World Mission Board as Chair of the Christmas Mission 

Market Project. I am the Parliamentarian of the GSPC Presbyterian Women’s Board and 

served as Chair of our cookbook, Simply Divine, A Second Helping by working on media 

advertising………. 

 

I am a founding member of the Sherlock Holmes Society, Daphne Chapter and was an 

officer for 2 years…I served two terms on the Friend of the Daphne Public Library 

Board………….. 

 

At Councilman Palumbo’s suggestion, after my husband’s death in 2004, I became active 

with the Daphne Beautification Committee. At my first meeting plans were suggested for a 

Butterfly Garden at Gator Alley. I was asked to Chair that sub-committee………… 

 

We had the good fortune to have Robert Colville, a student from Bayside, who needed an 

Eagle Scout Project who created the Butterfly Garden. Next was Charlie Sumner, who 

made benches and tables for Gator Alley.   The paved walk entrance and the fence 

installation completed. More work continues on Gator Alley and in all of Daphne. It has 

been my pleasure to work with these young people, the Beautification Committee, and the 

Public Works and the Parks Department to help our community. In 2008 I was selected to 

Chair the Beautification Committee……. 

 

 

 

85



Daphne Public Library Board   
 
 

Library Board - Meeting Minutes 
 

September,  2012 
 

 In Attendance: 
 
Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Members 
Andre LaPalme, Windrila Longmire, Chantal Booth, and Jim Bodman; Friends President 
Jim Morris; Council Liaison John Lake. 
 
1) Call to Order: 
 
Meeting called to order at 4:04 pm. 
 
2)   Old Business: 
 
Motion was made by Jim to approve the May, June, July, and August minutes.  Motion 
was seconded by Windrila.  Motion passed. 
 
3)  Library Report: 
 
Packets were distributed for the Board.  A Camellia Net chart was discussed showing an 
increase from two users in the month of May, 2011 to 672 in June, 2012.  This was an 
increase of 99.7% in usage of the digital materials purchased by the Daphne Public 
Library alone.   
 
Tonja discussed the new staff, the new Nonfiction Book Club, teen and children’s 
activities, and the library website (www.daphnelibrary.org) and library Facebook.  
Statistics were discussed for the months of May through August. 
 
4) Board Discussion: 
 
None. 
 
5)  Citizen Participation: 
 
Jim discussed the upcoming FODL Book Sale on Sept. 22 from 9:00 am until 2:00 pm.  He 
also discussed the advertisement paid for by the Friends and its success.  Tonja 
commented that circulation increased dramatically from May to June, probably as a 
result of the advertisement and all the new patrons who were inspired to join the library 
after reading the ad. 

86



 
Jim discussed plans for the annual staff Christmas dinner, sponsored by the Friends. 
 
Jim announced that he and Tonja are planning a history series on WWII for Jan. – Feb. 
2013 with 6 lectures by Dr. Morris.  Tonja is working on flyers, posters, etc., and booking 
a room at the civic center, while Jim is preparing the speaking topics. 
 
6) New Business: 
 
The Board nominated and voted unanimously to elect new officers as follows:  Chair – 
Andre LaPalme, Vice Chair – Jim Bodman, Treasurer – Windrila Longmire, Secretary – 
Tonja Young. 
 
Jan stated she would be resigning to spend time recuperating from her treatments. 
 
Board members discussed getting a plaque for City Council Liaison Gus Palumbo. 
 
7)  Adjourn: 
 
Motion was made by Windrila to adjourn at 5:00 pm. 
 
 
Reminder: Next Meeting Nov.  8 @ 4:00 pm 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by T. Young, Oct. 1, 2012 

87



LIBRARY BOARD NOMINATION 

 

 

Bio for James M. Morris, Ph.D. 

41 Lakeshore Drive 

Daphne, AL  36526 

625-3346 

 

 

Dr. Morris was born and raised in Michigan.  He completed his Ph.D. and is a 

historian and Professor Emeritus at Christopher Newport University.  He has 

worked as a lecturer and with college libraries in selecting materials. 

Dr. Morris relocated to our area several years ago and has been an active member 

of the Friends of the Library, having served as President of that group during the 

past year. 

88



LIBRARY BOARD NOMINATION 

 

 

 

 

Nancy Volovecky 

26949 Rigsby Road 

Daphne, Alabama 36526 

251-625-0793 

 

 

A native of Mobile, I moved to Daphne in 1983.  I met my husband, Jerry 

Volovecky, shortly after the move and we married in 1986.  We have two teenage 

children, Daniel and Jan, and I have been a stay at home mom since the birth of our 

first child. 

  

A graduate of McGill-Toolen High School, I was a member of the National Honor 

Society and the McGill-Toolen Band.  I attended the University of South Alabama 

and graduated in 1979 with a degree in English, minor in Business Management.  I 

worked for Delchamps, Inc. in the advertising department for about 8 years.  After 

deciding on a career change, I went back to school and completed an associate 

degree in accounting.  My first job was with the City of Daphne as the accounts 

payable clerk until my husband was transferred to accept employment in 

Huntsville, Alabama.  We made our home in Decatur, Alabama and we both were 

employed with Intergraph Corporation; he in Engineering and myself in Finance, 

for several years.  We returned home to Daphne in 1997 where we built a 

permanent home on the old Allegri farm in Belforest where my husband was 

raised. 
  

 

89



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers  September 26, 2012  5:00 p.m. 

 
I. Call to Order 

The regular September 2012, Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on September 26, 2012 
and called to order by Chairman Robert Segalla, at 5:01 p.m. 

 
II. Roll Call 

   Members Present: Robert Segalla, Chairman 
  Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman  

 Lon Johnston  
 Bailey Yelding, Mayor  
  
Others Absent: Ron Scott, Secretary/Treasurer 

   
      Others Present: Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney 

 Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager 
 Teresa Logiotatos – Finance Manager 
 Deloris Brown – HR Manager 
  Janice Daniel – Customer Service Representative  
  Lori May-Wilson – Executive Assistant 
 Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 
 Ray Moore - HMR 

 
 Others Absent:  Rob McElroy – General Manager  
 Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Chairman led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

IV. Approval of Minutes        

A. Utilities Board Minutes from August, 2012: 

The Chairman inquired if there were any corrections noted for the submitted Minutes from the August (September 12), 
2012, Utilities Board meeting. No corrections were made.  

   

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to approve the Minutes for August (September 12), 2012; Seconded by 
Mayor Bailey Yelding. 

AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SEGALLA,YELDING           ABSENT: SCOTT       ABSTAIN:   MOTION CARRIED 

  
 
 

90



MINUTES - 2 

 
V. Old Business 

No old business to note. 

 

VI. New Business 

A. Election of Utility Board officers (Board Action - Motion) 
a) Chairman 
b) Vice-Chairman 
c) Secretary/Treasurer 

 
Chairman Segalla called for nominations for officers for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne. 
 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to nominate those officers as currently occupying those positions; 
Seconded by Mayor Bailey Yelding. 

AYE: Jenkins, Johnston, Segalla, Yelding    ABSENT: Scott  ABSTAIN:    MOTION CARRIED  

 
Elected positions are: 
Chairman  Bob Segalla 
Vice-Chairman Fenton Jenkins 
Secretary/Treasurer Ron Scott 

 

B. Proposed lease of old Maintenance Facility property for high-tech water filtration research pilot 
project. 
Mr. Jerry Speegle gave an overview of the pilot project for the Board and presented a draft lease.  He recommended 
authorizing him and Mr. McElroy to negotiate the terms due to the fact that there is no lease payment because of the 
property improvements.  A discussion took place regarding the lease.  It was suggested and agreed that the Board 
review the lease and contact Mr. Speegle with any questions by Wednesday, October 3rd.  Mr. Lyndall answered 
questions from the Board and confirmed that the company proposing the lease will be handling obtaining the 
appropriate permits from the City as well as from the Corps of Engineers.  Chairman Segalla also made it known that the 
City Council will have to approve the lease also, which Mr. Speegle confirmed.  Mr. Johnston questioned Melinda Immel 
of her knowledge of the project.  She responded that she was aware of the project and actually advising Algae Systems 
of the permitting processes with the different agencies, Corps of Engineers, ADEM, etc.  She advised that the company 
does have safety test measures of the bags in question.  She reiterated that Volkert was assisting them in the permitting 
process.   
 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to authorize the Utilities Board Attorney and General Manager to 
negotiate the final aspects of the lease agreement; Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 
AYE:  ABSENT:  ABSTAIN:                 

 
Chairman Segalla asked to have the Motion include that all Board members speak to Jerry Speegle by Wednesday, 
October 3 whether there are changes or not so that Mr. Speegle will have heard from every Board member regarding 
the lease agreement.  
 
Mr. Lon Johnston made an amendment to his Motion as follows: 
 

AMENDED MOTION BY Lon Johnston to authorize the Utilities Board Attorney and General 
Manager to negotiate the final aspects of the lease agreement with each Board member contacting Jerry 
Speegle with a YEA or NAY requiring a unanimous vote; Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 

AYE: Jenkins, Johnston, Segalla, Yelding   ABSENT: Scott ABSTAIN:               MOTION CARRIED  

 

 
 

91



MINUTES - 3 

   
  

VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 Mr. Speegle had nothing to add to his report. 

 
VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 

 Teresa Logiotatos informed the Board that budget was not ready to be handed out at this board meeting but expected it to 
be reviewed by Rob McElroy and distributed soon after with a work session planned before the October board meeting.  
She reviewed various financial highlights for the Board.  Mr. Lon Johnston suggested the Board consider a study for rate 
increases in light of the income reduction to be better prepared.  Mrs. Logiotatos pointed out the study that was conducted 
and could certainly be reviewed and updated.  Mr. Segalla suggested along with the rate study that temporary surcharges 
for projects be investigated.   Mrs. Logiotatos noted that additional funding will undoubtedly be necessary.  Mr. Johnston 
commented for the Board to consider a study for rate increases in light of the income reduction and the impending capital 
improvements to the system.  Mrs. Logiotatos reminded the Board of the rate study that was produced for the previous 
rate increase that can be updated and that any capital expense projects will be funded out of the reserve funds after the 
balance of the state revolving loan money is allocated.  Chairman Segalla asked to also investigate along with the rate study 
some temporary surcharges for capital improvements projects that would expire when the projects are completed.  Mr. 
Lyndall gave an example of a $50,000 repair cost from a recent water main break within our aging 50-year water system. 

 

   

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

A. GM Report 
Danny Lyndall reviewed the General Manager’s Report and re-introduced the Utilities’ most recent employees.  Nothing 
further was added to the report.  Chairman Segalla asked if defensive driving was part of safety training.  Mrs. Deloris 
Brown advised that the “skip car” was expensive but in-house training was being implemented. Mr. Johnston questioned 
the “start” of fire hydrant maintenance and Mr. Lyndall advised him that the hydrant maintenance is a continual task. 
 
Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates had nothing further to add to her report. 
 
Doug Bailey of HMR updated the Board on the paving of Well Road.  
 

  

X. BOARD ACTION –  
Accomplished under “New Business”. 

 

XI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None. 

 
XII. BOARD COMMENTS – 

 
Mr. Johnston commented on the fine performance of the Board members in their Officer capacities. 

 
XIII. ADJOURNMENT – 

 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to adjourn the meeting; Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 

AYE: Jenkins, Johnston, Segalla, Yelding                             ABSENT: Scott                    ABSTAIN:                          MOTION CARRIED  

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:29 pm.  

92



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

93



94



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

95



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

96



RESOLUTION 2012-93 
  2013-A-PROFIT DRIVE EXTENSION 

  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that PROFIT DRIVE EXTENSION will exceed 
$50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the PROFIT DRIVE EXTENSION 

and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding in the amount of $106,445 was previously budgeted and the balance will be 
funded from the Four Cent Gas Tax Fund (total project cost of $271,845); and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for PROFIT DRIVE EXTENSION be awarded to John G. 
Walton Construction Company. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from John 
G. Walton Construction Company in the amount of $240,344.34 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-A-PROFIT DRIVE EXTENSION.   
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this         day of                      , 2012. 
 

 
                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk  
 

97



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-94 

2013-B-LIBRARY CARPET REPLACEMENT 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the LIBRARY 
CARPET REPLACEMENT will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the LIBRARY CARPET 
REPLACEMENT and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the LIBRARY CARPET 
REPLACEMENT be awarded to Richard Sprouse Construction, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Richard Sprouse Construction, Inc. for the amount of $58,212 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-B-LIBRARY CARPET REPLACEMENT. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS            day of                          ,2012. 
 
      

     
                                                                                                                                                                                         

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
        

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk  
 
 

98



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2012-95 
 

Fiscal 2013 Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne recognizes the health, safety, 
and welfare benefits derived by the citizens of Daphne through the services 
performed by community agencies and the promotion of the City of Daphne 
fostered by community events, and strategic plans; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Daphne has made appropriations in its Fiscal 2013 
Budget for the benefit of certain community agencies and events; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce is one such agency. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne 
that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the agreements 
necessary for the City to make contributions in the amount of $6,000 to the 
Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce as appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED  by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this ________ day of _______________, 2012. 
 
       
 
      _______________________________ 
      Bailey Yelding, Jr Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 
 

99



 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
BALDWIN COUNTY ) 
CITY OF DAPHNE  ) 
 

MUNICIPAL AGENCY FUNDING CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this the ____ day of 
__________, 2012, by and between the CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal 
Corporation, of the State of Alabama (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City" 
or "the City"), and the Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce,  (hereinafter 
sometimes referred to as the “Chamber” or “Agency"): 
 
 
W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has requested that the City of Daphne 
appropriate funds for its use for the benefit, either directly or indirectly, of the 
residents of the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to have the Agency perform 
certain services during the 2012-2013 fiscal year. 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits moving each to the other, it 
is mutually agreed by and between the City and the Agency as follows: 
 
I. AUTHORITY 
 
 Agency represents and warrants to City that it is authorized by law to 
receive funding from City and that such funding will not be in violation of Article 
IV, Section 94, or amendments thereto, of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, or 
any other constitutional or statutory provision. 
 
Agency further warrants that funding from the City will only be used to perform 
public services and/or acts which the City is otherwise authorized to perform or to 
fund itself. 
 
II. SERVICES 
 
 The Agency shall provide the following public services within the 
Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne: 

 
1) The Chamber shall seek and endeavor to attract and promote new 
and expanding industry within the Daphne area to create new jobs and 
employment for the benefit and economic improvement and expansion for 
the citizens of Daphne and Baldwin County; 
 
2)  The Chamber shall gather and distribute information and 
presentations to general and specific architectural, industrial, and 

100



 2 

manufacturing prospects; 
 
3) The Chamber shall work with existing industry for expansion, problem 

solving, counseling, and other services pertinent to the expansion of 
said existing industry for the benefit of Daphne and its citizens; 

 
4) The Chamber shall work with agencies and organizations with similar 

purposes such as the Baldwin County Economic Development 
Alliance; Alabama Development Office; industrial development 
departments of public and private utilities; local, area, and regional 
planning and development agencies; industrial development boards; 
and groups including the American Industrial Development Council; 
Southern Industrial Council; and other groups, organizations, 
agencies, and individuals; 

 
5) The Chamber shall welcome individuals and groups deemed by 

Daphne to be important to Daphne and Baldwin County, at their point 
of arrival, such as the airport, and other transport terminals and 
designated places in the area.  The Chamber shall assist and help in 
coordinating the ground breakings, openings, civic presentations, and 
other activities involving Daphne officials and employees; 

 
6) The Chamber shall provide services for meetings and groups 

convening in the City of Daphne.  Also, the Chamber shall assist 
potential new and expanding businesses and people moving into the 
area; 

 
7) The Chamber, through its staff, as well as volunteers, from local 

leadership, shall promote Daphne and Baldwin County and maintain 
its good name and good will; 

 
8) The Chamber shall coordinate and manage the annual Jubilee Festival 

held in down town Daphne.  The Mayor shall designate City 
employees to act as liaisons and coordinators for the City. 

  
If Agency provides public services both inside and outside the Corporate 

Limits of the City, then, if requested by the City or its representative, it shall 
submit an audit report demonstrating that services by the Agency, at least to the 
extent of the funding herein, shall be and were provided within the Corporate 
Limits of the City, including an identification of the number of City residents 
served by said agency. 
 
III.  APPROPRIATION 
 
 The City shall appropriate funds to the Agency in the following amount for 
the 2012-2013 fiscal year: $ 6,000 (Six Thousand Dollars), said amount to be 
paid pursuant to a method determined by the Finance Director of the City.  The 
Finance Director of the City or his/her designee shall be the representative of the 

101



 3 

City for the administration and implementation of the provisions hereof on behalf 
of the City. 
 
IV.  SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 
 
 The City shall be under no obligation to the Agency except to the extent 
set out expressly in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in the event there is a 
separate valid written agreement between the City and Agency, then this 
Funding Agreement is supplemental thereto and in the event of a conflict the 
terms of the latest written agreement shall prevail. 
 
V.  TERM; TERMINATION 
 
 The terms of this Agreement shall commerce as of the 1st day of October, 
2012, and shall continue in force until the 30th day of September, 2013, unless 
sooner terminated.  Provided, however, in the event a new contract is not 
executed by the commencement of the new fiscal year, the City may elect to 
continue funding if appropriated by budget or budget continuation provisions and 
if so, the Agency agrees to remain bound by the terms of this Agreement and to 
continue to provide all services hereunder until a new funding contract is 
executed. The contract is otherwise terminated as set forth herein or if the official 
City budget does not contain an appropriation for the Agency.  Either party to this 
Agreement may, with or without cause, terminate this Agreement as to the first 
day of any month by giving the other party no less than thirty (30) days written 
notice thereof.  In event of termination by either party, the Agency shall refund to 
the City an amount equal to the excess of the total amount appropriated over an 
amount which bears the same ratio to the total amount appropriated as the 
month(s) actually performed bear to the total months covered by this Agreement. 
 
 
 
VI.  NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE 
 
 This Agency hereby covenants and agrees that in performing its 
responsibilities and obligations hereunder, the Agency, its officers, agents and 
employees will not, on the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or 
disability, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of 
persons, in any manner.  The Agency further agrees to comply with all applicable 
state and federal ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, and any regulations promulgated thereunder.  The Agency further 
agrees to appoint an ADA coordinator.  Said coordinator will be responsible for 
ensuring that the Agency is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act and will advise the City of Daphne ADA Coordinator for services and 
programs as to the Agency's state of compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
VII.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

102



 4 

 
 It is agreed between the City and the Agency that the Agency is an 
independent contractor.  Neither the City nor its officers, agents or employees 
shall be liable for damages, claims, actions, or causes of action, brought against 
the Agency, for the activities of the Agency. 
 
 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, it is agreed that 
the City has no financial interest in the business of Agency, and shall not be 
liable for any debts or obligations incurred by Agency, nor shall the City be 
deemed or construed to be partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested party 
in the assets of Agency, or profits earned or derived by Agency, nor shall Agency 
at any time or times use the name or credit of the City in purchasing or 
attempting to purchase any equipment, supplies, or other thing or things 
whatsoever. 
 
 Agency in the performance of its operations and obligations hereunder 
shall not be deemed to be the agent of the City but shall be deemed to be an 
independent contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own 
expense as City may from time to time request to indicate that it is an 
independent contractor.  City does not and will not assume any responsibility for 
the means by which or manner in which services by Agency, provided for herein, 
are performed, but on the contrary, Agency shall be wholly responsible therefore. 
 
VIII.  INDEMNITY 
 
 The Agency hereby covenants with the City that it will indemnify and hold 
the City and its officers, agents and employees harmless for or on account of any 
claim, suit, cause of action or judgment arising out of or in any manner 
associated with this Agreement or services provided or performed by Agency or 
any of its officers, agents or employees. 
 
IX.  NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 
 It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that they be the only parties 
to the Agreement and to expressly exclude third party beneficiaries; no person 
not a party to the Agreement may claim benefits under the Agreement. 
 
 
X.  SERVICE AREA 
 
 Agency shall submit, if requested by the City, to the Office of the Finance 
Director of the City, a written monthly report of the Agency's activities and 
expenditures, including, but not limited to, information demonstrating that 
services by the Agency within the Corporate Limits of the City at least equal, if 
not exceed, the funding from the City for that month.  Should the City determine 
at any time during the term of this Contract that Agency is not providing services 
within the City Corporate Limits at least equal to the funding herein, then the City 
may terminate this Agreement immediately.  Upon such termination, Agency may 

103



 5 

be, at the sole discretion of the City, required to refund any funds deemed by the 
City not to have been appropriately expended within the Corporate Limits. 
 
XI.  BOOKS AND RECORDS/REPORTS 
 
 Agency shall, at the request of the City, throw open and provide, at a time 
and place designated by the City, all books, records, accounts, statements and 
other documents as needed by the City to enable it to conduct a financial and/or 
operational review or audit of agency operations and/or finances.  If Agency 
refuses to honor the City's request within ten (10) days, it shall refund to the City 
all funds appropriated to it during the term of the contract.  All reports, 
evaluations and audits required shall be provided by Agency to any person 
appointed by the City or the Mayor to the Agency's governing body. 
 
XII.  AUDIT 
 
 The City may require Agency to have its financial records audited by an 
independent CPA firm.  A copy of the audited financial statements will be mailed 
to the City's Finance Director as soon as possible after the statements are 
issued. 
 
XIII.  OPEN MEETING, PUBLIC RECORDS, COMPETITIVE BIDS 
AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 A. As Agency is receiving public funds and/or other things of public 
value, including in-kind services, use of City employees and/or equipment from 
the City pursuant to this agreement, Agency agrees as follows: 
 
 1. To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of Daphne, 
all meetings of the governing or controlling body of the Agency or any committee 
or subcommittee thereof shall be open to the public when any issue or matter 
involving or relating directly or indirectly to this Agreement is discussed or 
considered and when there is any discussion or consideration of the use of public 
funds or things of value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 2. Public Records.  To the same and like extent as is applicable to the 
City of Daphne pursuant to State law, all records, documents, letters, minutes, 
memoranda, etc. of the Agency shall be open to public inspection and copying 
when the same pertain to any issue or matter involving or relating directly or 
indirectly to the performance by Agency of this Agreement or the use of public 
funds or other things of value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 3. Expenditure of Public Funds.  To the same and like extent as is 
applicable to the City pursuant to State law, all expenditures or disbursements of 
funds received by the Agency, whether directly or indirectly, from the City shall 
be subject to competitive bidding. 
 
XIV.  SEVERABILITY 

104



 6 

 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto 
that in the event any covenant, condition or provision herein contained is held to 
be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise appears to both 
parties to be invalid, the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision 
herein contained, shall not affect other remaining and valid covenants or 
conditions herein unless such invalidity renders performance of the essential 
elements of the contract impossible. 
 
XV.  MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
 Capacity: Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the 
other as follows: 
 
 A. That it is an individual of the age of majority or otherwise a legal 
entity duly organized and in good standing pursuant to all applicable laws, rules 
and regulations. 
 
 B. That each has full power and capacity to enter into this Agreement, 
to perform and to conclude the same including the capacity, to the extent 
applicable, to grant, convey and/or transfer, areas, assets, facilities, properties, 
(both real and personal), permits, consents and authorizations and/or the full 
power and right to acquire and accept the same. 
 
 C. That to the extent required, each Party has obtained the necessary 
approval of its governing body or board and a resolution or other binding act has 
been duly and properly enacted by such governing body or board authorizing this 
Agreement and said approval has been reduced to writing and certified or 
attested by the appropriate official of the Party. 
 
 D. That each Party has duly authorized and empowered a 
representative to execute this Agreement on their respective behalf and the 
execution of the Agreement by such representative fully and completely binds the 
Party to the terms and conditions hereof. 
 
 E. That absent fraud, the execution of this Agreement by a 
representative of the party shall constitute a certification that all such 
authorization for execution exists and has been performed and the other Party 
shall be entitled to rely upon the same.  To the extent a Party is a partnership, 
limited liability company or joint venture, the execution of this Agreement by any 
member thereof shall bind the Party and to the extent that the execution of 
Agreement is limited to a manager, managing partner or specific member then 
the person so executing this Agreement is duly authorized to act in such capacity 
for the Party. 
 
 F. That each party represents and warrants to the other that there is 
no litigation, claim, or administrative action threatened or pending or other 
proceedings to its knowledge against it which would have an adverse impact 

105



 7 

upon this transaction or upon either's ability to conclude the transaction or 
perform pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 G. That each party has obtained any and all required permits, 
approvals and/or authorizations from third parties to enable it to fully perform 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 Final Integration: This Agreement together with any amendments, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final 
integration thereof with respect to its subject matter.  In the event of a direct 
conflict between the provisions hereof and any prior agreement or amendment, 
the latter shall supersede the former.  All written or oral understandings and 
agreements heretofore had between and among the parties are merged into this 
Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses their understandings.  
No representation, warranty or covenant made by any party which is not 
contained in this Agreement or expressly referred to herein has been relied on by 
any party in entering into this Agreement. 
 
 Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party 
responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, 
lockouts or other circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the 
other party's employees agents or contractors. 
 
 Amendment in Writing: This Agreement may not be amended, modified, 
altered, changed, terminated or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a 
further agreement in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 
 
 Binding Effect: This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective 
personal representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatees, distributees, successors, 
and assigns.  If any provision in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions 
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
 Captions: The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and 
reference only, are not a part of this Agreement, and in no way define, describe, 
extend or limit the scope or intent of this Agreement. 
 
 Constructions: This Agreement shall be construed in its entirety 
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed against the party who 
provided or drafted it. 
 
 Mandatory and Permissive: "Shall", "will", and "agrees" are mandatory, 
"may" is permissive. 
 
 Governing Laws: The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern the 
validity of this Agreement, the construction of its terms, the interpretation of the 
rights, the duties of the parties, the enforcement of its terms, and all other 
matters relating to this Agreement. 

106



 8 

 
 Prohibition on Assignment and Delegation: No party to this Agreement 
may assign or delegate its interests or obligations hereunder without the written 
consent of all other parties hereto obtained in advance of any such assignment 
or delegation.  No such assignment or delegation shall in any manner 
whatsoever relieve any party from its obligations and duties hereunder and such 
assigning or delegating party shall in all respects remain liable irrespective of 
such assignment or delegation. 
 
 Waiver: Non enforcement of any provision of this Agreement by either 
party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the 
enforceability of that provision or of the remaining terms and conditions of the 
Agreement. 
 
 Ownership of Contract Documents: The Contract Documents, and 
copies of parts thereof, are furnished and owned by the City.  All portions of the 
Contract Document, and copies of parts thereof, are the instruments of serve for 
this project.  They are not to be used on other work and are to be returned to the 
City on request at the completion of the work.  Any reuse of these materials 
without specific written verification or adaptation by the City will be at the risk of 
the user and without liability or legal expense to the City.  Such user shall hold 
the City harmless from any and all damages, including reasonable attorneys 
fees, from any and all claims arising from any such reuse.  Any such verification 
and adoption shall entitle the City to further compensation at rates to be agreed 
upon by the user and the City. 
 
 Fines and Penalties The Contractor shall be solely liable for any and all 
fines or penalties which may be levied by any governmental authority against the 
Owner and/or Contractor which are related to the Contractor's operations.  The 
Owner shall deduct the amount of the levied fine or penalty from the Contract 
amount. 
 
 Agreement Date/Counterparts: The date of this Agreement is intended 
as and for a date for the convenient identification of this Agreement and is not 
intended to indicate that this Agreement was necessarily executed and delivered 
on said date.  This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which so executed shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts 
shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
 Use of Words and Phrases: The following words and phrases, where 
used in this document, shall be given the following and respective interpretations.  
"Herein," "hereby," "hereunder," and other equivalent words refer to this 
document as an entirety and not solely to the particular portion hereof in which 
any such word is used. 
 
 The definitions set forth in any portion of this Agreement unless the text or 
context indicates differently shall be deemed applicable whether the words 
defined are herein used in the singular or the plural.  Wherever used herein any 

107



 9 

pronoun or pronouns shall be deemed to include both singular and plural and to 
cover all genders. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 
Agreement as of the day and date first set fort above. 
 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Bailey Yelding, Jr, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________  
Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk 
 
 

EASTERN SHORE CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE 

 
     BY:_______________________________ 
 
     TITLE:_____________________________ 
 
     Federal Tax ID#:_____________________ 
 
WITNESS: 
 
 
____________________________ 
By:_________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

108



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-96           
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 

SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX HOLIDAY 

FOR THE YEAR 2013 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

  Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2012-256 grants municipal 

governments authority to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the payment 

of municipal SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX during a period commencing at 

12:01 a.m. on February 22, 2013 and ending at twelve midnight February 24, 2013 under the 

same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by the State of Alabama SEVERE 

WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX holiday. 

 

  Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of certain 

covered items from the payment of municipal SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX for 

the period commencing at 12:01 a.m. February 22, 2013 and ending at twelve midnight February 

24, 2013 under the same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by Act No. 2012-256 

and Alabama Department of Revenue Rule 11-51-210(e). 

 

  Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

this the _______ day of  _____________, 2012. 

 

 

     

    ________________________________ 

    Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

109



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2012-97 
 

A Resolution Authorizing Issuance of  
Credit Cards: Building Official - Inspections 

 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 1996-45 adopted July 15, 1996, authorized the issuance 
of a City of Daphne credit card to certain department heads; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne now deems it necessary to authorize the issuance 
of an additional credit card to the Building Official – Inspections for training and 
travel. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Daphne that Section 1 of Resolution 1996-45 is hereby amended to 
include the Building Official - Inspections.  All other provisions of Resolution 1996-
45 remain in full force and effect. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ______ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
     
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

110



ORDINANCE 2012-60  
 

Appropriation: (4) Police Vehicle Replacements 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the police department has a plan to replace vehicles every six to 
seven years in order to maintain high performance and thereby reduce 
maintenance costs and provide additional protection to police officers in the event 
of accidents and high speed responses; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the budget restraints replacement of Police vehicles has not 
been able to stay on schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, four (4) vehicles (Chevy Tahoes) are requested to be purchased from 
the state bid contract to replace older vehicles. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $170,700 for the replacement of four 
police vehicles. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________   , 2012. 
 
         
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

111



 

Page 1 of 8 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA  

ORDINANCE 2012 - 65 

 

 WHEREAS, the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne (“Daphne Utilities”) is required to 

receive the consent of the City of Daphne under the provisions of Ala. Code § 11-50-314(a)(10) 

before it leases property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the management of Daphne Utilities has determined that it is in the best 

interest of Daphne Utilities to lease certain of its property to Algae Systems, LLC as described in 

detail on Exhibit A; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Daphne Utilities has approved the lease of the 

property to Algae Systems, LLC as described in Exhibit A. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the council of the City of Daphne does 

hereby consent to the lease by Daphne Utilities of the property described on Exhibit A, to Algae 

Systems, LLC. 

 

Adopted and Approved by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama this _______ 

day of _________________, 2012. 

 

 

         

        ______________________________ 

        Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

        Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

Interim City Clerk

112



 

Page 2 of 8 

EXHIBIT A 

113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



ORDINANCE 2012 - 66 
 

Profit Drive Extension 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain Four Cent Gas Tax appropriations are required 
and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Four Cent Gas Tax Funds may be used for resurfacing, restoration, 
and construction of roads within a municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Profit Drive Extension project meets this definition; and  
 
WHEREAS, $ 106,445 was previously budgeted for such project; and  
 
WHEREAS, bids were obtained and the total project cost, including engineering 
and inspections, is estimated to be $ 271,845.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that an appropriation in the amount of $ 165,400 ($ 271,845 total cost-$ 
106,445 already appropriated) is hereby approved from the Four Cent Gas Tax 
Fund and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for the Profit Drive Extension 
project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 

 
         
                                                                           

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

 

137



ORDINANCE 2012- 67 
Garbage Truck Replacement Appropriation 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations from the Garbage Enterprise 
Fund are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 
2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Garbage department has a Fleet Management Plan which 
identifies aging vehicles that are becoming costly to maintain in working order; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City needs to keep garbage trucks in good working order to avoid 
constant repairs and subsequent interruptions in garbage collection services; and 
 
WHEREAS, a new 28-yard vehicle is required in Fiscal 2013 to meet these 
requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City lease-purchases such vehicles and the debt service is paid by 
the Garbage Enterprise Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, funds are available in the Garbage Enterprise Fund for such purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
Garbage Enterprise Fund appropriation in the amount of $ 234,910 (National Joint 
Powers Alliance pricing) to lease purchase a 28-yard automatic side-loading refuse 
collection truck and the Finance Director is authorized to pursue lease-purchase 
financing for such purchase. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
          
 
    

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor     
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

138



ORDINANCE 2012-68 
 

Lodging Tax Appropriation: Williams Property Acquisition and Remediation for 
Yancey Branch Sediment Control 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on October 

1, 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain Lodging Tax appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that large amounts of sediment are impacting Yancey Branch, 
Daphne’s beachfront property, and ultimately Mobile Bay; and  
 
WHEREAS, the source of such sediment deposits has been identified as property currently owned 
by Henry C. Williams, Jr; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lodging Tax Funds may be used for the maintenance of beachfront property and, 
sediment control along Yancey Branch which feeds into Mobile Bay, meets this requirement; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the acquisition and subsequent remediation of this property will preserve and 
protect the water quality and habitat of Yancey Branch and Mobile Bay, and thereby maintain 
the valuable and limited asset the City of Daphne has in beachfront property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that 
the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include a Lodging Tax appropriation in the 
amount of $ 200,000 for 1) the acquisition of the Williams property ($ 149,000); and 2) the 
remediation of the property to control the flow of sediment into Daphne’s beachfront areas and 
Mobile Bay ($ 51,000).  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
         
 
    

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr,  Mayor 
 
           
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

139


	AGENDA
	City Roll Call
	MAYOR

	Council Minutes - November 5 - Organizational Meeting - FINAL
	Council Minutes - November 5 - Business Meeting
	Council Work Session Mintues - NOVEMBER 13
	Reporting of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes - 2012-11-14
	Backup to Finance Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes - November 14 Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA Nomination
	DRA MINUTES - OCTOBER
	DRA - NOMINATION
	Library Board Minutes - Sept 2012
	Library Board Nomination - James Morris
	Library Board Nomination - Volovecky
	Utility Board Minutes
	Mayors Report
	Parade Permit - Shadow Barons
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE
	2012-93 - RES -  Profit Drive Extension-2012
	2012-94 - RES - Library Carpet Replacement
	2012-95 - RES - FY13 Chamber of Commerce
	Backup to 2012-95 - RES - FY13 Chamber of Commerce
	2012-96 - RES - Severe Weather ST Holiday 2013
	2012-97 - RES - Credit Card - Building Inspection
	2012-60 - ORD - PD Vehicle Replacements-FY13
	2012-65 - ORD - Approve Utility Lease of Property (Algae Systems LLC)
	Backup - 2012-65 - ORD - Utility
	2012-66 - ORD - Four Cent Gas Tax Profit Drive Ext
	2012-67 - ORD - Garbage Truck
	2012-68 - ORD - Lodging Tax Fund-Williams Property



